
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, January 18, 2023

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

23-0001 Common Council Meeting Minutes of December 21, 2022

 

CC Minutes 12-21-22.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

23-0045 Proclamations:

  - Human Trafficking Awareness Day

  - Martin Luther King Jr. Day

 

Human Trafficking Awareness Proclamation.pdf

Martin Luther King Jr Day Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

23-0046 Library Update

 

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

22-1491 Public Hearing for Floodplain Ordinance Text Amendments: North 

Edgewood Estates

 

TA 4-22 Notice of Public Hearing.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 1/13/2023

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22177
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a540a4c6-1f67-4a41-bd3c-557f31c83bc1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22221
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2f780cf0-944e-47e2-a40f-3795691e1ddb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bd0214e8-5365-4f32-bbd6-74087dd35838.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22222
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22040
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d2a3da78-a6b8-4795-b5e6-029da9d42540.pdf


January 18, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-1529 Public Hearing for Rezoning #5-22 at 1208 N. Oneida Street from C-2 

General Commercial District to R-2 Two-Family District.

RZ #5_22 Notice of Public Hearing.pdfAttachments:

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

23-0015 2023 Sole Source Purchase Request

 

2023 Sole Source Purchase Request.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/9/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

23-0018 M-23-2023 Materials Testing Contract

 

M-23 Contract Award Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/9/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

23-0043 * Critical Timing* 2023 Sole Source Purchase Request - Downtown 

Streetscape Elements  

 

2023 Sole Source Purchase Request.pdfAttachments:

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

23-0028 Resolution Changing the District 12 Polling Place

 

2023 Resolution Changing District 12 Polling Place.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/11/23 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 1/13/2023

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22078
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=480ae25a-d6ad-445e-ad64-5a75d09492cc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22191
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4d566ec8-8efb-4eda-9254-d951123ec91f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22194
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a845e7ba-63ca-439d-83c8-248c498dfae6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22219
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e9736d8c-db54-4037-8990-95956b8881e3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22204
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3ab562da-f999-45f7-b009-8b4cdef2f0c8.pdf


January 18, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

23-0013 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Appleton 

Souvenir & Cigar Co, Norman J Kopesky III, Agent, located at 415 W 

College Ave, contingent upon approval from all departments.

Appleton Souvenir & Cigar.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/11/23 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

23-0020 Cigarette License application for Appleton Souvenir & Cigar Co, Norman J 

Kopecky III, Applicant, located at 415 W College Ave.

Appleton Souvenir & Cigar S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/11/23 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

23-0021 Cigarette License application for SK Gas Mart LLC d/b/a Badger Mobil, 

Satbir Singh, Applicant, located at 1201 N Badger Ave

Badger Mobil S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/11/23 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

22-1522 Request to approve Rezoning #5-22 for the subject parcel located at 1208 

N. Oneida Street (Tax Id #31-6-0329-00), including the adjacent one-half 

(1/2) right-of-way of N. Oneida Street, as shown on the attached maps, 

from C-2 General Commercial District to R-2 Two-Family District

StaffReport_1208NOneidaSt_Rezoning_For 12-14-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/14/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on January 18, 2023.

22-1526 Request to approve Zoning Ordinance Text and Map Amendments to 

Article X Floodplain Zoning of Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code relating to 

Section 23-205(b)(2) General provisions; Official maps and revisions; 

Official maps based on other studies related to LOMR - Case 

#21-05-2374P, as identified in the attached staff report

StaffReport_AmendFloodplainOrd_NorthEdgewoodEst_LOMR_For12-14-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/14/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on January 18, 2023.

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 1/13/2023

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22189
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b9a3d40-57dd-4723-ba7d-0d042aaefba7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22196
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e2e1bbd4-33ca-4ede-9b25-fa51bbfee567.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22197
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bcc747fd-8ae0-4587-aba5-86e64b3ad60e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22071
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e6c055c5-aa98-478b-9f65-df9492da7242.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22075
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6249eff1-704c-4bed-9b77-2ab55cfdf894.pdf


January 18, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

23-0027 Request to award contract Unit O-23 Sanitary and Storm Sewer CIPP Lining to 

Visu-Sewer, Inc. in the amount of $626,000 with a 9.5% contingency of $59,933 

for a project total not to exceed $685,933.

Award of Contract Unit O-23.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/9/23 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

23-0006 Request to amend the Development Agreement (Phase II) with Merge LLC 

extending the purchase date from February 16, 2023 to September 29, 

2023 for a mixed-use development located on the southeast corner of W. 

Washington Street and N. Appleton Street (Tax Id #31-2-0272-00) in Tax 

Increment Financing District No. 11

Merge Ph II DA 1st Amendment Memo to CEDC 1-11-23.pdf

Request from Merge LLC to Amend Dev Agrm.pdf

Merge Ph II Recorded Dev Agrm.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/11/23 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

23-0007 Request to approve the Development Agreement with Oshkosh Investment 

LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC for improvements to the property 

located at 200 W. College Avenue (Tax Id #31-2-0263-00) (Chase Bank 

building) in Tax Increment Financing District No. 11

Oshkosh Investment-Lofgren Properties 6 LLC DA Memo to CEDC 1-11-23.pdf

1046 - Oshkosh-Lofgren - Dev Agrm - 01-04-2023.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/11/23 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

23-0003 Award sole source purchase of Goulds axial flow pump from Crane 

Engineering in the amount of $133,876.

 

Utilities Committee Blended Sludge Pump 12-29-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/10/23 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 1/13/2023

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22203
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=56b4bdcc-0311-497a-8c97-63361033ab82.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22182
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92f42042-914e-4e8e-a4fb-9c15f988c07d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=58b1e8fd-2433-4857-9a7d-75b874fb147c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5c99ed09-307c-4cf3-8aaf-68a051e0deac.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22183
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46af8025-639e-4cab-8595-13960bd8f8ef.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=429edf74-744d-43cd-8340-10f763f640e4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22179
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf4ac65a-1bda-43e0-853f-14b3443faaab.pdf


January 18, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

23-0032 Award axial flow sludge blending pump impeller repair contract to August 

Winter and Sons in the amount of $23,000 with a 15% contingency of 

$3,450 for a total not to exceed $26,450.

 

230106_ Blended Sludge Pump Repair Contract Award Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/10/23 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

23-0042 Ordinances #1-23 & #2-23

 

Ordinances to Council 1-18-23.pdfAttachments:

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 1/13/2023

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22208
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=76972cd6-8135-489a-a239-ad7de0f9effe.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22218
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=55fb134c-03bd-4630-9b91-3cc69353e3cc.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, December 21, 2022

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Thao.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt, 

Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 15 - 

Alderperson Katie Van ZeelandExcused: 1 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

22-1627 Common Council Meeting Minutes of December 7, 2022

 

CC Minutes 12-7-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22176
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e8259654-3587-43b1-a36c-c97bc33e5da0.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

22-1618 Sustainability Panel Appointments

 

Sustainability Panel Appointment Memo.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

appointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Nay: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-1619 Board/Committee Appointments & Reappointments

 

Miscellaneous Appointments and Reappointments Memo.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

appointments/reappointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-1621 Certificate of Appreciation for Community & Economic Development 

Director, Karen Harkness

 

The certificate was presented.

22-1620 Certificate of Appreciation for Chief of Police, Todd Thomas

 

The certificate was presented.

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22167
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=85231d6f-c7f1-4ade-b362-2dc224796dac.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22168
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7885afb8-a9d8-4ef1-a3b2-6de35fee5821.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22170
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22169


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1622 Library Update

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

There was no one signed up to speak during public participation.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

22-1626 Initial Resolution for the Street Vacation of portions of Appleton Street, 

Pacific Street, & Oneida Street

(Taken up under Consolidated Action Items)

 

InitialResolution_AppletonStPacificStOneidaSt_StreetVacation.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

22-1564 Action Item:  Request Approval of Aquatic Fees and Charges Policy

 

Memo Aquatic Fees and Charges Policy.2022.pdf

2022 Aquatic Programs Fees and Charges.CLEAN.pdf

2022 Aquatic Programs Fees and Charges.REDLINE.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Thyssen moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the Fees for 

the Summer Swim Pass be amended for the youth pass resident/annual fees to 

reflect no increase from the previous fees. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, 

Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz and Alderperson 

Nate Wolff

8 - 

Nay: Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

6 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22171
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22175
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2159d530-69f2-429c-97a4-68de1b6e9d6d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22113
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=39a337e5-3c8e-41a8-a5e1-4301d53126cf.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f7f0ec3a-4376-4b54-864a-acb86ad1cf4f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d521d415-d1a6-4fd5-b29e-6eabb0bcb810.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Alderperson Thyssen moved, seconded by Alderperson Schultz, that Section D. 

of the Policy be amended to read: Summer passes purchased after the first 

Thursday in June will be charged the regular rate.

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

Policy be approved as amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad 

Doran

13 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-1576 Resolution #12-R-22 Elimination of Council Parking Passes

#12-R-22 Eliminate Council Parking Passes for 2023.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Firkus moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the Resolution 

be amended at the Therefore It Be Resolved to read: Any money for unused 

2023 parking permits from alders who choose not to take a parking pass for 

2023 be added to the Police Department's budget to aid officers in assisting 

homeless persons with challenges caused by winter weather and related 

community safety expenses.  The amount to be transferred will be equal to the 

full twelve month costs of parking passes from any even-numbered district's 

alderperson or any odd-numbered district's alderperson if that person is 

running for re-election unopposed, plus the costs of four months of parking 

passes for any other alder who chooses not to accept a parking pass in 2023.  

The funds will be made available to the Police Department after the first week 

of January 2023.

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22125
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9cfc07bc-e992-409a-81c7-3e1f4dbc0a95.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Nay: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus, that the 

Resolution be approved as amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-1518 Request to approve recommended funding of $15,000 for 2023 

sponsorships for Appleton Downtown Inc. (ADI) programs as outlined in 

the attached document

Memo to CEDC on ADI Sponsorships 2023.pdf

ADI Sponsorship Proposal to City 2023.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

funding request be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-1553 Environmental Health Fee Schedule Proposal

2022.12.14_EHFeeScheduleMemo_a.docx

2023_EHFeeSchedule.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Firkus moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the 

Environmental Fee Schedule be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Israel 

Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, 

Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

11 - 

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22067
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cee164f3-6ba7-4e49-abe2-b46d914b867a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1b186fef-2cef-432c-b3ee-703974a847f0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22102
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8461cb87-10bf-4a40-b837-cf72a4a894e4.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a2a22275-527d-4ce1-ae0e-53b7241bf751.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Alex Schultz and Alderperson 

Nate Wolff

3 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, Alderperson Del Toro seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

22-1540  *CRITICAL TIMING* Award 2023 Contract for Operation, Maintenance, 

Monitoring and Passive Vent Improvements at the Closed City of 

Appleton Landfill to SCS Engineers, in an amount not to exceed 

$150,395. 

 

Mackville 2023 award to SCS.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved

22-1541  Approval of a single source award for the 2023 Cap Maintenance at the 

Closed City of Appleton Landfill to New Paradigm Companies, LLC in an 

amount not to exceed $38,400. 

 

Mackville 2023 award to New Paradigm to MS.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22089
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4efad42c-5c66-4217-be09-eca43cee01f0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22090
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=424b7f9a-21cd-4eef-8a54-1cb4885e9f78.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1542 Request from Pfefferle Management Companies for a permanent street 

occupancy permit for a construction dumpster on Superior Street (Meter 

#197) for a period ending on January 31, 2023. 

 

2022.12.12 Street Occ Pfefferle.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1575 Request from Westwood for a street occupancy permit for a groundwater 

monitoring well to be placed in EB E Franklin Street (50’ east of the N 

Oneida St and E Franklin St intersection) through December 31, 2023.  

 

Proposed Boring Locations.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1582 Approve Master Professional Services Agreement with Westwood 

Professional Services, Inc. through December 31, 2027.  Scope of 

services and compensation for professional services under this master 

agreement are subject to future committee and Council approval.

(A copy of the proposed agreement will be distributed prior to the 

meeting).

17-1039 - Westwood MSA 2023-2027.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1601 Approve partial street vacations at the intersection of Appleton 

Street/Pacific Street/Oneida Street as shown on Exhibit "A". 

 

Exhibit A - Appleton-Pacific-Oneida Partial Street Vacations.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

22-1586 Request to purchase a UTV.

 

11-30-22_EMS_Flex_Grant_UTV_Quotes.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22091
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=48a91c24-4ba6-4ec6-a9f7-7a5fc9b7ac79.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22124
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=564ac295-8bbc-4205-8bd8-8db3397bc51e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22131
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8af8fe0c-540f-4eb8-9c96-9c545b20631e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22150
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9063bb7b-c23a-43a1-8f0a-d0a6e8f494a6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22135
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9f5415de-9c41-47d9-9c36-bb38ffda490a.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1493 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License application for The Jerk 

Joint LLC d/b/a The Jerk Joint, Fay V Oliver, Agent, located at 1619 W 

College Ave Suite D, contingent upon approval from the Finance, Health 

and Inspections departments.

The Jerk Joint.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1505 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Richmond 

Bar and Grill LLC d/b/a Richmond Bar, Tiffani Daul, Agent, located at 

2611 N Richmond St, contingent upon approval from the Health, 

Inspections and Police departments.

Richmond Bar.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1506 Cigarette License application for Richmond Bar and Grill LLC d/b/a 

Richmond Bar, located at 2611 N Richmond St.

Richmond Bar and Grill LLC S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1516 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License application for SK Gas 

Mart LLC d/b/a Badger Mobil, Satbir Singh, Agent, located at 1201 N 

Badger Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments.

Badger Mobil - Singh.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1528 "Class A" Liquor License application for Sayash LLC d/b/a Wisconsin 

Ave Marathon, Yam Lamichhane, Agent, located at 1920 E Wisconsin 

Ave, contingent upon approval from the Fire, Health, Inspections and 

Police departments.

Wisconsin Ave Marathon.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1544 2023 Secondhand Article, Secondhand Jewelry and Pawnbroker 

License renewal applications, contingent upon approval from all 

departments.

2023 Renewals.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 8City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22042
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=05036fcc-1dec-46d6-b20f-05c1cd3754a7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22054
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9216935c-c445-4941-b549-7dbbd00a322b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22055
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=984bdbc9-987d-4cee-807f-99db6ea483ed.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22065
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46018c49-fb2f-4804-a094-b95c29c42b4d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22077
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=41471d22-8137-461e-9f59-b211559db2fb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22093
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2ce7be15-9343-420e-9e2d-2b2e43dfa761.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1555 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License Change of Agent 

application for Ultimate Mart LLC d/b/a Pick N' Save #123, Sara 

Hopkins, New Agent, located at 2700 N Ballard Rd, contingent upon 

approval from the Police department.

Sara J Hopkins S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

22-1524 Request to approve the street discontinuance to vacate portions of 

Appleton Street, Pacific Street, and Oneida Street public right-of-way, 

generally located north of Packard Street and south of Atlantic Street, 

subject to the condition in the attached staff report, and adopt the Initial 

Resolution and exhibit maps

StaffReport_AppletonStPacificStOneidaSt_StreetVacation_For12-14-2

2.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1527 Request to approve Certified Survey Map #30-22, which crosses a plat 

boundary, for 1201 Banta Court and 1100 E. South River Street (Tax Id 

#31-4-0279-00, 31-4-0279-01, 31-4-0805-00, 31-4-0819-00, 

31-4-0820-00, 31-4-0823-00 & 31-4-0823-01) to combine the 7 existing 

parcels as shown on the attached map and subject to the conditions in 

the attached staff report

StaffReport_Whiting Field-Banta 

Bowl_CrossingPlatBoundary_For12-14-22.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

22-1532 Action Item:  Sole Source - Request to award contract to ISG for design 

services for Lundgaard Park in the amount of $297,420 with a design 

contingency of $25,000 for a total contract not to exceed $322,420

 

2023 Lundgaard Park Design.docAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 9City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22104
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ebe1430b-85bd-4d1c-bc6f-6a9f3affffb5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22073
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=57d031ff-d395-43dd-9e11-cc29210cf500.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22076
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5cc5c225-f153-4c8c-b9b7-bda386504850.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22081
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cb7bae2e-94bf-4bd7-bc11-c1d01a4fc8f1.doc


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1551 Action Item:  Request Approval of Reid Golf Course 2023 Rates Policy

 

Memo-2023 Reid Rates Policy.docx

Reid Rate Policy 2023 Draft.docx

Reid Rate Policy 2023 REDLINE Draft.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1563 Action Item:  Request Approval of Military Family Support Policy

 

Memo Military Family Support Policy.2022.pdf

Military Family Support Policy.CLEAN.2022.pdf

Military Family Support Policy.REDLINE.2022.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1567 Action Item:  Request Approval of Aquatic Special Event Policy

 

Memo Aquatic Special Event Policy.2022.pdf

2022 Aquatic Special Event Policy.CLEAN.pdf

2022 Aquatic Special Event Policy.REDLINE.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1571 Action Item:  Request Approval of Pool Rental, Reservation, and General 

Use Policy

 

Memo Pool Rental, Reservation, and General Use Policy.2022.pdf

2022 Pool Rental,  Reservation and General Use Policy.CLEAN with 

MOU.pdf

2022 Pool Rental,  Reservation and General Use Policy.REDLINE.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

22-1590 Request to approve resolution to terminate Tax Incremental District #6.

 

TIF 6 Termination Memo.pdf

TID 6 Termination Resolution.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 10City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22100
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f301d1bb-9d39-43b4-8047-6cc4e3a9a33c.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e6db2353-15db-49c3-ac47-36f8e9b8b41a.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5e78ad2b-9b29-4dc8-a5a2-526bb258fede.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22112
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c39e99bb-1bb5-4c97-ae9a-43fe3b1954ad.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3d1bbbc-2101-407c-9ecf-ac0fc18bc374.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d00c38c5-5a9e-4cd6-871d-00b79e9c05fd.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22116
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b8019d3e-448b-412e-9083-f9cc222bc6ad.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=be8c4767-3527-4409-8fa0-61b4522d3e94.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7c85ee40-3b1f-4b29-b82b-da159e6db5dc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22120
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92303428-c604-40d1-bb4c-6b931e4fdb8d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=de7db6f9-0d5b-46c8-8134-f4772edbecd7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24c39de6-4ac0-4c67-a439-a46b0318b07b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22139
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=57502943-63f6-49fd-94e5-a24ec7e77856.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b611199b-26e1-40c2-9e75-cbacbf9ea34f.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1591 Request to award the AWWTP H & J-Building HVAC Upgrades Project 

contract to Great Lakes Mechanical, Inc. in the amount of $232,000 with a 

12% contingency of $27,840 for a project total not to exceed $259,840.

 

2022 AWWTP HJ HVAC Upgrades Project_.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1592 Request to approve a sole source contract to McMahon for bidding and 

construction related services needed to complete the 2023 Wastewater 

Hardscapes Improvement Project, for a contract fee of $36,000 and a 

10% contingency of $3,600 for a project total not exceed $39,600.

2023 AWWTP Hardscpes Construction Services (Sole Source).pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1593 Request to award Unit Z-23 Watermain Reconstruction to Kruczek 

Construction Inc. in the amount of $2,919,000 with a 5.1% contingency of 

$150,000 for a project total not to exceed $3,069,000.

 

Award of Contract Unit Z-23.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1594 Request to approve Contract Change Order No. 1 to contract 63-22, Unit 

Y-22 Lead/Galvanized Water Service Replacement for additional 

properties added to our 2022 program for removal and replacement of 

private-side lead water services in the amount of $53,762.13 resulting in 

a reduction in contingency from $56,450.00 to $2,687.87. Overall 

contract amount remains unchanged.

 

Unit Y-22 Change Order No. 1.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1595 Request to approve write off of $44,867.60 of accounts receivable 

invoices and $10,073.42 of personal property taxes (outstanding over 

one year).

 

Finance Committee - AR Write-off List 2022.pdf

Finance Committee - PP Write-off List 2022.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 11City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22140
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7991b7a3-2553-4a96-8e2d-698853c9fa6f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22141
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e187edaa-e38f-4ed3-9af8-03fdeded82a1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22142
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=321cc28a-a380-4a87-84f4-a428b70ac64e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22143
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ec8428b3-4245-41a9-9823-728c68726fbb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22144
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9673ecc4-f010-4f08-8b1a-6a5341032740.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e09ca8d5-2b17-46cd-8b62-659ffe29ddc6.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

22-1624 Request to amend the Development Agreement with 318 College Ave 

LLC for an extension of terms, 6 months to Section 4.1.1 and 12 months 

to Section 4.1.2, for improvements and redevelopment of the property 

located at 318 W. College Avenue (the Park Central Property) in Tax 

Increment Financing District No. 11

318 College Ave LLC DA Amendment Memo 12-21-22.pdf

Request from 318 College Ave LLC to Amend DA 12-15-22.pdf

Park Central - Dev Agrm - RECORDED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1554 Request to approve the Development Agreement with EP Development 

Inc. for an 8 unit townhouse condominium project located on E. John 

Street (Tax Id #31-1-0772-02) (Phase 3 of the former Foremost Farms 

property) in Tax Increment Financing District No. 8

Eagle Ridge DA Memo 12-14-22.pdf

0994 - Eagle Ridge - Dev Agrm - 12.09.2022.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

22-1534 Award 2023A Stormwater Consulting Services Contract for 2023 

Stormwater Management Plan Reviews to Brown and Caldwell in an 

amount not to exceed $35,000.

 

2023A Plan Review Award Util Memo BC.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1535 Award of 2023B Stormwater Consulting Services Contract for 2023 

Stormwater Management Plan Reviews to raSmith in an amount not to 

exceed $35,000.

 

2023B Plan Review Award Util Memo raSmith.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 12City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22173
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f1a1fb52-f55d-4a6c-89d9-b05a309cce11.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8a671d85-3dea-49e8-8932-d7d8f2571292.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a2c2d9c6-1772-4289-9673-f9686f7410a9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22103
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ef46520-bee2-455b-972e-03adc06d8a6a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=519c7af8-e3fb-4928-b49a-bb8f5b7a838c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22083
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0e013fb2-d691-431d-ab18-15c771f3d502.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22084
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ac628a9e-4422-4f7a-80b3-615cef81b897.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1536 Award 2022G Stormwater Consulting Services Contract for the French 

Road Urbanization Study with McMahon Associates Inc. in an amount not 

to exceed $46,354.

 

2022G French Rd Urbanization McM Award Memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1550 Amend 2021D Stormwater Consulting Services Contract for Lightning 

Drive Extension Final Design with raSmith in an amount not to exceed 

$25,000.

 

2021D Lightning Drive Final Design Contract Amendment Memo 

12-07-2022 FINAL.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1556 Approval to sole source and award 2022J contract for Conkey Pond 

Regional Pond Model Update, in an amount not to exceed $36,910.

 

2023 Conkey Pond model update BC award.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

22-1546 Request for Axon Evidence Storage. 

 

2022 Request for Axon Evidence Storage.pdf

Axon Quote.pdf

2022 Excess Fund Balance Memo.pdf

Email Sole Source Police Evidence Storage.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

22-1560 Approve Sole Source Purchase from Cellcom for In-Vehicle Network 

System

Award Recommendation Doc_Cellcom.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 13City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22085
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf469ef8-7c55-440f-a85d-e1ce7c472631.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22099
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3cfb9791-f323-46e6-8f8f-3e5aa7e708d0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22105
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f07c69bc-b8e4-4a56-9d86-15b8d182d834.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22095
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f1243f6e-e1f0-437a-a58a-84b9998b6d8e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=360197e5-70ff-484f-a8af-3c090c90bc8e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4baebfab-d9d8-4e3e-a6eb-bb04ec084e8f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dab14994-ea9d-4233-9895-d848cab5c831.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22109
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e8afe97b-52b4-46f6-838c-40e3074c0d4f.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1561 Approve Sole Source Contract for IMEG Corporation for Professional 

Services

2022 Valley Transit Remodeling Comissioning.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1562 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Outagamie County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2023, Contingent on Outagamie 

County Approval

Outagamie Contract - 2023.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1565 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Winnebago County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2023, Contingent on Winnebago 

County Approval 

Winnebago Contract - 2023.pdf

Winnebago Contract - 2023 Amended.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1566 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Calumet County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2023, Contingent on Calumet 

County Approval

Calumet Contract - 2023.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1568 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with the City of Neenah and the 

Village of Fox Crossing for the Northern Winnebago Dial-A-Ride Service 

for 2023, Contingent on City of Neenah and the Village of Fox Crossing 

Approval 

NW Dial-A-Ride - 2023.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

Page 14City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22110
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=40f2f28b-503a-434a-8972-46954fef0774.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22111
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e984af6-f166-4b70-918f-f95d0a47067c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22114
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a333b12c-3b62-441c-8042-26d72244472b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=08286f0f-56e7-43da-847c-6afd7c3e8c1e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22115
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=04294375-6e0e-44be-abb0-a5110003477f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22117
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3d991587-c9fe-4d7c-a669-7a433f401884.pdf


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1625 Appleton/Pacific/Oneida Street Vacation Consolidated Action 

Items

Item 22-1601 Municipal Services Committee

Item 22-1524 City Plan Commission

Item 22-1626 Initial Resolution (Special Resolutions)

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the 

Street Vacation Consolidated Action Items be approved. Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

22-1617 Update on the Outagamie County Landfill Siting Agreement.

 

Attorney Behrens presented the update on the Landfill Agreement.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Alfheim, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 8:23 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Page 15City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22174
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22166


December 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 16City of Appleton







1 | P a g e  
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

OF THE 
 

APPLETON COMMON COUNCIL 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Public Hearing to be held before the Appleton Common 
Council in Common Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton Street, on 
Wednesday, January 18, 2023 at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, for the purpose 
of amending Article X of Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code relating to Floodplain Zoning that is 
required by state and federal law.   
 

The City of Appleton is considering amending Article X. Floodplain Zoning 
Division 1. Statutory Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, 
Title and General Provisions. Sec. 23-205 (b) (2) Official maps based on 
other studies related to LOMR – Case #21-05-2374P.    

 
All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be 
heard.  Feedback can also be shared with Common Council members via written letter, email, or 
phone call. 
 
A copy of the proposed map amendment and text amendment to Chapter 23 of the Zoning 
Ordinance is available in the Appleton Community and Economic Development Department or 
the Office of the City Clerk from 8:00 a.m. until 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
 
A copy of the proposed Floodplain Zoning Ordinance amendment materials are available by 
contacting Pete Neuberger, P.E., Project Engineer in the Department of Public Works at 920-832-
6474 or by email at peter.neuberger@appleton.org or by contacting Don Harp, Principal Planner 
in the Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6466 or by email at 
don.harp@appleton.org. 
 

KAMI LYNCH 
CITY CLERK 

 
Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible 

mailto:peter.neuberger@appleton.org
mailto:don.harp@appleton.org


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
#5-22 

RE: Proposed Zone Change 
 

A public hearing will be held in the Council Chambers, City Hall, Appleton, Wisconsin, on 
Wednesday, January 18, 2023, at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, to consider the 
following proposed zone change: 

 
Rezoning #5-22: The applicant, Jim Fletcher, is requesting to rezone Property Tax Id #31-6-
0329-00 located at 1208 North Oneida Street, including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way, 
as shown on the attached maps, from C-2 General Commercial District to R-2 Two-Family 
District. 
 
Purpose of the Request:  The applicant states: “The property is an older house currently set up 
with a kitchen, bath, 2 bedrooms and living area on the first floor and 2nd floor.  We request 
rezoning back to R-2 in order to make repairs and renovate the property to a modern, affordable 
rent, 2 unit property.  The property accommodates parking for 2 units and we feel this would 
have a positive economical impact for the city.” 
 
Legal Description:  
DAVID KIMBALLS ADDN 6W D N60FT OF LOT 5 BLK 19 LESS DOC #1873750 FOR 
R/W, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND INCLUDING TO 
THE MIDPOINT OF THE ADJACENT RIGHT-OF-WAY.  TAX ID NUMBER 31-6-0329-00.   
 
December 27, 2022 
 
RUN: January 3, 2023    KAMI LYNCH 
 January 10, 2023    City Clerk 











     
Appleton city government exists to provide quality services responsive to the needs of the community 

 
Department of Public Works – Engineering Division 

    
MEMO 

 
TO:  Municipal Services Committee 

 
FROM: Danielle Block, Director of Public Works 
                        Ross Buetow, City Engineer 
  Sue Olson, Staff Engineer 
   
DATE: January 4, 2023  
 
RE: Award of 2023 Materials Testing Contract (M-23) to Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an 

amount not to exceed $100,000. 
_______________________________________________________________________________  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends award of the 2023 Materials Testing Contract to 
Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $100,000.  
 
In January 2019 a Request for Proposals (RFP) was sent to five (5) consulting firms and three (3) 
proposals were received.  The Request for Proposals specifically stated: “With satisfactory performance 
by the selected consultant services may be negotiated with the selected consultant and approved by the 
Common Council on a yearly basis for an additional 4 years.”  Based on the continued quality of work 
during 2022, staff recommends awarding the 2023 contract as the fifth year of the approval.  
 
Work under this contract includes the following: 

• Material testing for concrete, asphalt, and soils,  
• Contaminated material response, analysis, and permitting,  
• Emergency response to illicit discharges, 
• Styrene testing for cast in place pipe (CIPP),  
• Performing environmental investigations, 
• Performing geotechnical investigations  

 
Although cost data was received as part of the proposal, the actual work needed during the year is truly 
unknown. Funding for this work is included in each individual budget (concrete, asphalt, sidewalk, 
sanitary, storm and water).  Expenditures will be for services actually performed and may be less than the 
awarded amount.  A contract amendment will be brought to committee if additional funding is necessary.  
 
 
  
 





CITY OF APPLETON 
RESOLUTION 

 

Resolution declaring polling places in the City of Appleton pursuant to  

Wis. Stat. § 5.25  

WHEREAS, City of Appleton Aldermanic District 12 is comprised of Wards 35, 36, 37 
& 52 and; 

WHEREAS, the current polling place for District 12, St. John United Church of Christ 
has relocated and sold their building and; 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Appleton to change the District 12 
polling place to a facility that is amenable to adequately accommodate voters and 
Election Day operations; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Appleton District 12 Polling 
place be changed to Saint Pius X Catholic Church, 500 W Marquette St, Appleton, 
WI 54911 effective beginning with the February 21st, 2023 Spring Primary Election.  

 

 

Adopted:      

Published:      

 

              
        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

 

              
        Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



07/01/2022 06/30/2023















 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  Little Angel Child Care, Inc. 

 

Applicant:  Jim Fletcher, RE/MAX 24/7 Commercial Real Estate c/o Reed Asset Management, LLC 

 

Address/Parcel:  1208 North Oneida Street (Tax Id #31-6-0329-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  “The property is an older house currently set up with a kitchen, bath, 2 bedrooms 

and living area on the first floor and 2nd floor.  We request rezoning back to R-2 in order to make repairs 

and renovate the property to a modern, affordable rent, 2 unit property.  The property accommodates 

parking for 2 units and we feel this would have a positive economical impact for the city.” 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

The building was originally constructed as an upper/lower two-family dwelling in 1898 per City Assessor 

records.   

 

Rezoning #25-85 was approved by the Common Council on August 2, 1985 to rezone the property from 

C-3 Wisconsin Avenue District to C-2 General Commercial District.  The purpose of the rezoning was to 

allow the first floor dwelling unit to be converted into a retail space.  Subsequently, the second floor 

apartment continued to be rented, but no City permits were applied for to convert the first floor dwelling 

unit into a retail space.  

 

Building Permit B89-#0753 was approved by the Inspection Division on August 1, 1989 to allow the first 

floor dwelling unit to be remodeled and used as a commercial day care facility “Little Angel Child Care”.  

The second floor apartment continued to be occupied.  Pursuant to the C-2 zoning district standards, the 

commercial day care facility was considered the principal use of the property, and the second floor 

dwelling unit was considered an accessory use of the property.  

 

Little Angel Child Care was licensed and certified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services 

Department (2003 data) to provide child care services up to 16 children per license number 1006495 for 

Little Angel Child Care Inc.  This child day care facility is not currently in operation. 

 

The applicant proposes to change the 1st floor commercial space back to a residential dwelling unit, while 

maintaining the 2nd floor dwelling unit.  The applicant applied for variances in anticipation of submitting 

this rezoning request.  The Board of Zoning Appeals approved variances for the front yard setback and 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Informal Hearing Meeting Date:  December 14, 2022 

Common Council Public Hearing Meeting Date:  January 18, 2023  

Item:  Rezoning #5-22 – 1208 North Oneida Street from C-2 General 

Commercial District to R-2 Two-family District 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 



Rezoning #5-22 

December 14, 2022 

Page 2 

 

minimum lot width standards listed in the R-2 Two-family District on October 17, 2022.  The variances 

were needed in order for the building and lot width to comply with the R-2 Two-family District minimum 

development standards as stated in Section 23-95(g)(1)f. and g. of the Zoning Ordinance.   

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Existing Site Conditions:  Currently, the parcel is developed with a two-story building, detached garage 

and a paved driveway used for off-street parking.  

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses:  A variety of uses can be found in this area of the 

City, including retail, restaurant and service type business, and residential (single/two family) uses.  

    

North:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the north is currently a restaurant.  

 

South: R-2 Two-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the south is currently an upper/lower two-

family dwelling.  

 

East:  R-1C Central City Residential District.  The adjacent land use to the east is currently single-family 

residential. 

 

West:  R-2 Two-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the west is currently an upper/lower two-family 

dwelling. 

 

Proposed Zoning Classification:  The R-2 District is intended to provide for and maintain residential 

areas characterized by single-family detached and two-family dwelling units.  Increased densities and the 

introduction of two-family housing types are intended to provide for greater housing options for owners 

and renters while maintaining the basic qualities of a moderately dense residential neighborhood.  The 

development standards for the R-2 District are listed below: 

 

1) Minimum lot area:  7,000 square feet (two-story duplex).  

2) Maximum lot coverage:  60%. 

3) Minimum lot width:  70 feet. *Variance approved, 60.11 feet. 

4) Minimum front yard:  20 feet. *Variance approved, 18.7 feet.  

5) Minimum rear yard:  25 feet.  

6) Minimum side yard: 6 feet.  

7) Maximum building height:  35 feet. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  A rezoning is often triggered by development proposals or 

changing circumstances in the City.  In this case, the request is being made to allow the applicant to 

change the use from 1st floor commercial to a residential dwelling unit.  As a result, the building would be 

classified as an upper/lower two-family dwelling unit after all applicable municipal codes have been 

satisfied.  If the rezoning request is approved, the R-2 District zoning regulations, variance approvals and 

other applicable sections of the Zoning Ordinance would apply to the subject site.    

 



Rezoning #5-22 

December 14, 2022 

Page 3 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton 2010-2030 Comprehensive Future 

Land Use Map identifies the subject site and block as future mixed use. The proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the following goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 and the 

residential mixed-use designation pursuant to Chapter 15 Wisconsin Avenue Corridor Plan.   

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 3 – Housing Quality, Variety, and Affordability 

Appleton will provide a variety of rental and ownership housing choices in a range of prices affordable to 

community residents, and ensure that existing housing is adequately maintained in terms of physical 

quality and market viability. 

 

OBJECTIVE 5.1: Continue efforts to ensure an adequate supply of housing affordable to all income levels 

in the community. 

OBJECTIVE 5.3 Housing and Neighborhoods: 

Provide a range of housing options that meet the needs and appeal to all segments of the community and 

allows residents to age in place. 

Policy 5.3.3  Plan for a supply of developable land suitable for residential development. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use:  

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.4 Land Use: 

Plan for compact, efficient, and fiscally responsible growth of residential, commercial, and industrial 

development in new neighborhoods in order to implement the principles of smart growth. 

Policy 10.4.1  Continue to guide residential growth to locations either contiguous to or within 

presently urbanized areas.  As peripheral development occurs, it should be at a compact, urban 

density to ensure new neighborhoods can be efficiently served by public infrastructure. 

 

Chapter 15: Wisconsin Avenue Corridor Plan: 

Residential Mixed-Use - As with the pedestrian-oriented commercial category, areas identified for 

residential mixed-se may contain both commercial and residential uses. Here, however, residential uses 

should dominate. Buildings may be entirely residential, or incorporate a lesser area of commercial space. 

The intent of this district is to help to concentrate commercial activity into other areas, where it may 

cluster and create beneficial relationships between neighboring businesses. The area designated as 

residential mixed-use is thought to include parts of the Wisconsin Avenue corridor where the demand for 

commercial space is not very strong. High-density residential uses in these areas can offer property 

owners the opportunity to profitably redevelop their land and create additional households to support 

commercial businesses in the corridor. 

 

College North Neighborhood Plan – Chapter 4: Market Study 2020-2030: The average annual 

housing need is about 301 units per the market study.  The change of use from 1st floor commercial to a 



Rezoning #5-22 

December 14, 2022 

Page 4 

 

residential dwelling unit helps to meet the demand for housing in Appleton as specified in the market 

study.  

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  Related excerpts are listed below. 

 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  The rezoning request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

goals and objectives stated above and Chapter 15 Wisconsin Avenue Corridor Plan which 

identifies this area for residential mixed-use. 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development.  The City of Appleton’s College North Neighborhood Plan – Chapter 4: Market 

Study 2020-2030 indicates an average of 301 housing units is needed annually.   

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  The subject area is served by existing infrastructure, and 

the transportation network should be able to accommodate the proposed rezoning. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  A variety of uses can be found in the 

area of the City, including retail, restaurant and service business, and residential (single/two 

family) uses. The proposed rezoning would allow the owner to obtain the necessary building 

permits to change the use of the 1st floor from a day care facility to a residential dwelling unit 

and will allow the building to be classified as an upper/lower two-family dwelling unit.  

Therefore, the proposed rezoning request is unlikely to create adverse impacts in the 

surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Review Criteria:  Based upon the above analysis, it would appear the criteria established by Section 23-

65(d)(3) Zoning Amendments has been satisfied. 

 

 



Rezoning #5-22 

December 14, 2022 

Page 5 

 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the November 22, 2022 TRG agenda.  

No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for zoning map amendments as required by Section 23-

65(d)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, that Rezoning Application #5-22 to rezone the subject parcel located at 

1208 North Oneida Street (Tax Id #31-6-0329-00) from C-2 General Commercial District to R-2 Two-

family District, including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of North Oneida Street, as shown on the 

attached map, BE APPROVED. 

 



6-
03

52

6-
09

92

6-
09

93

6-0342

6-0334

6-0353

6-
03

01

6-0327

6-
03

31

6-
03

32

6-0329

6-0330

6-0298

6-0297 6-
02

99

6-
03

00
6-

03
25

12
02

114 120

12
08

127

114

111 121

100

111

12
03

12
09

11
21

11
15

12
02

.5

11
21

.5
12

09
.5

12
08

.5

104 116 118 120

115 121 127

11
20

11
14

N
 O

N
EI

D
A 

ST

E SUMMER ST

E WISCONSIN AV

W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

Rezoning 
1208 North Oneida Street

C-2 General Commercial District 
to R-2 Two-family District

Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
12-14-22± 0 100 20050 Feet

Subject Area



0-
03

56
6-0

34
4

6-
03

52

6-
03

51

6-
03

50

6-
03

49

6-0302

6-0290

6-
02

91

6-
02

94

0-0270

6-
03

61

6-
09

96

6-
09

95

0-0338

6-0338

6-0295

6-0362

6-0362-1

6-0883

6-0882

6-0886

6-0885

6-0884
6-

05
76

6-
05

75

6-
08

87

6-0582

6-0579

6-0580

6-0581

6-0583

6-
10

01

6-0999

6-0998

6-
10

03

6-
10

00

6-
10

02

6-
09

85

6-0986

6-
09

84

6-0997

6-0983

6-0982

6-
09

92

6-
09

936-0990

6-0989

6-0988

6-0918

6-
05

22

6-
05

21

6-
05

20

6-0523

6-0524

6-
05

25

6-
03

35

6-0107

6-
03

39 6-0340

6-0342

6-03346-0336

6-0337

6-0348

6-0354

6-0347

6-0345

6-0346

6-0343

6-0353

6-0358 6-0364

6-03636-0359

6-0360

6-0304

6-
03

01

6-0301-1

6-0289

6-
02

85

6-
02

67

6-
02

93

6-
02

92

6-0313

6-0307

6-0306

6-0305
6-

03
03

6-
02

86
6-

02
79

6-
02

80

6-0284

6-0283

6-0282 6-0277

6-0288

6-0287 6-0271

6-0270

6-0269

6-
02

72

6-0327
6-

03
31

6-
03

32

6-0324

6-0323

6-0333

6-0329

6-0330

6-0298

6-0297

6-0296

6-
02

99

6-
03

00

6-
03

08

6-
03

25

11
08

13
20

.5
14

12
.5

14
01

.5
14

11
.5

14
03

.5

119113

110 118

13
25

14
11

14
07

13
21

14
12

14
00

13
24

13
20

13
16

13
12

121

13
21

13
15

14
04

124

14
03

14
09

14
01

116.5

112

12
02

11
20

11
14

11
08

11
02

112

109113119

107115 115

10
08

10
16

10
20

12
02

114 120
12

03

11
02

10
12

121

12
08 12

09

126

215

13
09

200

10
09

.5

10
21

10
15

10
09

10
20

10
14

10
08

10
21

10
15

10
09

10
15

.5

11
08

.5
11

02
.5

108.5 120.5

11
09

.5
10

09
.5

10
15

.5

10
08

.5
10

16
.5

10
14

10
08

10
20

10
21

10
15

10
09

131

214

135131 133127
119.5

123131125

11
21

213

114

111 121

116 100122

111119

12
03

11
09

11
05

12
09

12
05

11
21

11
15

11
09

11
03

12
13

11
21

11
15

12
02

.5

11
21

.5
12

09
.5

12
08

.5

13
15

.5
13

15
13

19
13

25
14

03
14

09

13
14

-1
6

13
20

104 116118 120 132128

13
16

13
20

206-212

115.5

10
14

.5

11
20

.5

11
14

.5
11

08
.5

11
02

11
08

11
14

11
20

114 120108

115 121 127 131

11
20

11
14

11
09

11
03

11
15

13
16

.5

N
 O

N
EI

D
A 

ST

N
 A

PP
LE

TO
N

 S
T

N
 M

O
R

R
IS

O
N

 S
T

E SPRING ST

E SUMMER ST

E WISCONSIN AV

W SPRING ST

E RANDALL ST

W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

ARTIS ALLEY

E RANDALL ST

C-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-2

PD/C-O

R-2

R-2

R-2

R-2

R-1B P

R-2

PD/R-3

R-1C

R-2

R-1C

N
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

 S
T

E ATLANTIC STW ATLANTIC ST

E WISCONSIN AV

N
 L

AW
E 

ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N
 D

R
EW

 S
T

N
 O

N
EI

D
A 

S
T

N
 M

EA
D

E
 S

T

N
 D

R
EW

 S
T

N
 O

N
EI

D
A 

S
T

Rezoning 
1208 North Oneida Street

C-2 General Commercial District 
to R-2 Two-family District

Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
12-14-22 ± 0 150 30075 Feet

R-1C

R-2

R-1C





LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF 1208 N. ONEIDA STREET 

DAVID KIMBALLS ADDN 6W D N60FT OF LOT 5 BLK 19 LESS DOC #1873750 FOR 

R/W, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND INCLUDING TO 

THE MIDPOINT OF THE ADJACENT RIGHT-OF-WAY.  TAX ID NUMBER 31-6-0329-00.                                                                       



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Staff Contact/Petitioner:  Peter Neuberger, P.E., Department of Public Works, Engineering Division 

 

LOMR Case No. 21-05-2374P 

 

Affected Parcels:  31-1-7608-00, 31-1-7608-37 thru 45, 31-1-7608-47, 31-1-7610-01, 31-1-7610-02, 31-

1-7610-24, 31-1-7610-30, 31-1-7610-31, and 31-1-7612-20 thru 27. 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  Floodplain Zoning Amendment - Article X. Floodplain Zoning Division 1. Statutory 

Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, Title and General Provisions. Sec. 23-205 (b) (2) f. 

thru i. Official maps based on other studies related to LOMR – Case No. 21-05-2374P 

 

BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS____________________________________________________  _ 

On July 13, 2022, the Department of Public Works, Engineering Division sent letters to the property owners 

who own property within the subject area pursuant to Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) Case No. 21-05-

2374P.   

 

On September 16, 2022, the City received notification from the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA) that Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Panel No. 55087C0328D for Outagamie County (see 

attached) was revised and will go into effect January 27, 2023 by Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).  The 

revisions to this panel were based on additional study performed by Davel Engineering and Environmental, 

Inc. “Davel” for the incorporated areas in the City of Appleton along Apple Creek Northeast.  Davel’s Letter 

of Map Revision (LOMR) revises the FIRM to reflect North Edgewood Estates, a residential subdivision 

consisting of approximately 45 single-family home sites and accessory structures along Apple Creek 

Northeast. 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Informal Public Hearing Date:  December 14, 2022 

 

Common Council Public Hearing Date:  January 18, 2023 

 

Item:  Floodplain Zoning Amendment - Article X. Floodplain Zoning 

Division 1. Statutory Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, 

Title and General Provisions. Sec. 23-205 (b) (2) f. thru i. Official maps 

based on other studies related to LOMR – Case No. 21-05-2374P  

 

Staff Contact:  Peter Neuberger, P.E., Department of Public Works, 

Engineering Division 

 

Report Prepared by:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 

 



 

Floodplain Zoning Amendment Chapter 23 Zoning Ordinance  

December 14, 2022 

Page 2 

 

 

The LOMR area is located from a point approximately 330 feet downstream (southeast) of French Road to 

a point approximately 3,140 feet downstream (southeast) of French Road.  As a result of the LOMR, the 

regulatory floodway will widen and narrow at various locations within the area of revision.  

 

The LOMR will also result in:  

 

1.  Increases and decreases in the 1-percent-annual-chance water-surface elevations, with increases 

ranging from 0 feet to 0.35 feet, and decreases ranging from 0 feet to 0.20 feet, and  

2.  Widening and narrowing of the 1-percent-annual-chance floodplain.  

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the October 18, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION_______________________________________________________________ 

Pending public comments, staff recommends the proposed amendments to Article X Floodplain Zoning of 

Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code, Section 23-205 (b) (2) f. thru i. Official maps based on other studies, 

as attached, BE APPROVED.   

 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 

The text recommended to be added is underlined. The text recommended to be deleted is 

strikethrough.  

 

ARTICLE X.  FLOODPLAIN ZONING 

 

DIVISION 1. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF FACT, STATEMENT OF 

PURPOSE, TITLE AND GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 
 

Sec. 23-205. General provisions. 

 

(b) Official maps and revisions. The boundaries of all floodplain districts are designated as A, AE, AH, AO or A1-

30 on the maps based on the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) listed below.  Any change to the base flood elevations (BFE) 

or any changes to the boundaries of the floodplain or floodway in the FIS or on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 

must be reviewed and approved by the DNR and FEMA through the Letter of Map Change process (see Division 8 

Amendments) before it is effective.  No changes to RFE's on non-FEMA maps shall be effective until approved by the 

DNR.  These maps and revisions are on file in the office of the Department of Public Works, City of Appleton.  If 

more than one map or revision is referenced, the most restrictive information shall apply.   

 

 

  (2) Official maps based on other studies.  Any maps referenced in this section must be approved by the 

DNR and be more restrictive than those based on the FIS at the site of the proposed development. 

 

   a. LOMR – Case #11-05-7670P, Floodway and Floodplain revisions between Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) Cross Section AW to BA, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panels 

55087C0318D and 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 2010. This reflects changes on the Fox River from 

just downstream of the Private Middle Dam to approximately 250 feet upstream of the Appleton 

Upper Dam. 

 

   b. LOMR – Case #13-05-7920P, Floodplain revisions between Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Cross 

Section AN to AM, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate panels 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 

2010. This reflects changes along the south side of the Fox River from the College Avenue Bridge 

to approximately 850 feet downstream. 

 

   c. LOMR – Case #17-05-1963P. Floodplain revisions on Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) AAL Tributary Cross Section C, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel 

55087C0336D, effective September 29, 2017. This reflects changes along the AAL Tributary from 

just downstream of Lightning Drive to approximately 200 feet upstream of East Glenhurst Lane. 

 

   d. LOMR – Case #17-05-3854P. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) Fox River Cross Section AS through AW, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 

(FIRM) panel 55087C0319D, effective February 16, 2018. This reflects changes along the Fox 

River from just upstream of railroad to just downstream of South Oneida Street. 

 

   e. LOMR – Case #20-05-2300P. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) Apple Creek North Cross Section H through J, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 

(FIRM) panel 55087C0328D, effective July 22, 2010. This reflects changes along Apple Creek 

North from approximately 1,440 feet downstream of Harrier Lance to approximately 160 feet 

downstream of Ballard Road. 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

   f.  LOMR – Case #21-05-2374P. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) Apple Creek Northeast Cross Section H through I, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate 

Map (FIRM) panel 55087C0328D, effective January 27, 2023. This reflects changes along Apple 

Creek Northeast from approximately 700 feet downstream of Rubyred Drive to approximately 350 

feet downstream of French Road. 

 

  f. g. CLOMR – Case #21-05-3029R. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) AAL Tributary from just upstream of East Glenhurst Lane to approximately 500 feet upstream 

of Everbreeze Circle, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel 55087C0336D, 

effective November 1, 2021. 

 

   g. h. Kensington Pond Dam Failure analysis approved by the Department of Natural Resources on 

January 7, 2008, including: 

 

    1. Map dated July 2007 and titled “Figure 2, City of Appleton, Kensington Pond Dam Break 

Analysis, Hydraulic Shadow” (Hydraulic Shadow boundary from Cross Section 0.001 to 4.84). 

 

    2. Floodway data table dated 8/28/2007 and titled “Table F-10, Maximum Water Surface 

Elevations, Kensington Pond Dam Break Analysis, City of Appleton”. 

 

    3. Flood profiles dated 7/10/2007 and titled “Figure 3, Maximum Water Surface Profiles” 

(Hydraulic Shadow profile from Garners Creek Sta 0 to Sta 25000). Revisions made as a result 

of DNR review and received from Pete Neuberger via email 2/23/2021. 

 

   g. i. Outagamie County Flood Storage District Map Panel 1 of 2 approved by Wisconsin Department of 

Natural Resources and dated January 20, 2016. Prepared by DNR, approved by DNR. 

 

 

 

 
 

 





















TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Unit O-23 Sanitary and Storm Sewer CIPP Lining

Be awarded to:  

Name:  Visu-Sewer, Inc.

Address:  W230 N4855 Betker Drive

Pewaukee, WI 53072

In the amount of :

With a 9.5% % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date: 01/18/23

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$626,000.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$59,933.00

$685,933.00

$486,387.00

$556,000.00

01/09/23

1/5/2023

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Weyenberg C\Projects\2023\O-23 CIPP Liner\Unit O-23 Contract Award Form.xlsx



Bid Tabulation

O-23 Sanitary & Storm Sewer CIPP Lining

12/19/2022 01:45 PM CST

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

1 Lawrence St - 234' 12" Sanitary 1 lump sum $24,300.00 $24,300.00 $20,990.90 $20,990.90

2 Lawrence St (Esmnt) - 364' 10" Sanitary 1 lump sum $17,300.00 $17,300.00 $22,888.70 $22,888.70

3 Wayne St - 367' 10" Sanitary 1 lump sum $17,300.00 $17,300.00 $23,123.80 $23,123.80

4 Erb St - 201' 9" Sanitary 1 lump sum $10,300.00 $10,300.00 $17,157.80 $17,157.80

5 Erb St - 443' 10" Sanitary 1 lump sum $20,800.00 $20,800.00 $26,642.90 $26,642.90

6 Erb St - 33' 12" Storm 1 lump sum $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $14,335.90 $14,335.90

7 West Av - 30' 15" Storm 1 lump sum $8,300.00 $8,300.00 $18,728.60 $18,728.60

8 Easement Grandview Rd - 467' 15" Storm 1 lump sum $128,000.00 $128,000.00 $96,038.60 $96,038.60

9 Briarcliff Dr - 166' 15" Storm 1 lump sum $18,300.00 $18,300.00 $25,349.90 $25,349.90

10 Public Access w/o Briarcliff Dr - 208' 12" Storm 1 lump sum $92,500.00 $92,500.00 $20,781.90 $20,781.90

11 Easement Between Winona Way and Peabody Park - 515' 21" Storm 1 lump sum $77,000.00 $77,000.00 $86,514.50 $86,514.50

12 North St - 641' 18" Storm 1 lump sum $70,500.00 $70,500.00 $77,435.40 $77,435.40

13 Apple Creek Rd s/o JJ - 61' 36" Storm 1 lump sum $46,000.00 $46,000.00 $47,658.60 $47,658.60

14 Banta Ct West - Banta Ct Main 113' 12" Storm 1 lump sum $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $17,889.30 $17,889.30

15 Banta Ct East - Banta Ct Main 90' 18" Storm 1 lump sum $11,500.00 $11,500.00 $25,518.70 $25,518.70

16 W College Av & Lilas - 97' 24"x36" Storm 1 lump sum $46,000.00 $46,000.00 $52,380.70 $52,380.70

17 Lateral Inspection - Sanitary or Storm 3 each $1,200.00 $3,600.00 $711.30 $2,133.90

18 Reinstate Lateral - Sanitary or Storm 29 each $100.00 $2,900.00 $234.10 $6,788.90

19 Spot Repair 4 each $3,200.00 $12,800.00 $5,995.20 $23,980.80

Total Bid: $626,000.00 $626,339.80

Visu-Sewer
Insituform                                            

Technologies USA, LLCBid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

TO: Community and Economic Development Committee (CEDC) 
  
FROM:   Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist  
 
DATE: January 11, 2023 

RE: Request Approval of the First Amendment to the Development 
Agreement (Phase II) between the City of Appleton and Merge, LLC in 
TIF District #11 

 
 
The Appleton Common Council approved a Development Agreement (DA) with Merge, 
LLC (Developer) in January 2022 for development of a site at the southeast corner of 
Washington Street and Appleton Street (Blue Ramp Site).  This is the second phase of 
Merge’s development, with the first currently under construction immediately east of the 
subject site at 115 E. Washington Street.  It has always been Merge’s intention to roll 
right into construction of Phase II upon completion of Phase I.  Phase I construction was 
delayed due to changing environments of interest rates, supply chain challenges, and 
labor shortages.  
 
Per the existing Development Agreement, Merge is to acquire the former Blue Ramp 
Site from the City by February 16, 2023.  We have received a request from Merge to 
extend this date to September 29, 2023 (attached).  Extending the timeline will allow 
Merge to align construction with Phase 1 completion and allow time for significant pre-
construction investment and coordination among architects and contractors.   
 
Amending the Development Agreement to allow for this timeline does not change the 
financial commitments of the City and will help ensure Merge, LLC is successful in 
executing their projects in the City of Appleton. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
The First Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City of Appleton and 
Merge, LLC extending the purchase date from February 16, 2023 to September 29, 
2023 BE APPROVED. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



City of Appleton,

We would like to start this letter by expressing our thanks for the partnership on our Urbane115
project. We are wrapping up foundations and the building will start to take shape in Q1 of 2023.
We hope to continue the redevelopment and revitalization along East Washington Street with
Phase 2.

Urbane115 started later than originally anticipated due to increased costs and interest rate
volatility. We are currently scheduled to close on the Phase 2 property in February of 2023. This
closing date was established based on our original schedule of Phase 1. Due to the delays on
Phase 1, we would like to formally request to extend this closing until September 29, 2023. That
will align with Phase 1 completion and allow time for significant pre-construction investment and
coordination among architects and contractors.

The Phase 2 plan includes Odyssey Climbing Co. The new climbing gym is opening its first
location in Ashwaubenon in February 2023. Their grand opening was also delayed by several
months due to construction storm damage. Nonetheless, they have been received well by the
community with significant pre-opening membership.

We believe we remain the right partner to complete the redevelopment of the Blue Ramp Site.
Postponing cash payments for land enables us to invest significant resources into architectural
plans for construction, which allows us to establish construction costs based on bids, and  in
turn secure financing. The purchase price delay puts the project in a better position to be a
success.

We greatly appreciate your consideration.

Sincerely

Brent Dahlstrom







































 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Community & Economic Development Committee (CEDC) 
 
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist  
 
DATE:  January 11, 2023 
 
RE:  Request Approval of the 200 W. College Avenue (Chase Bank Bldg.)  

Development Agreement in TIF District #11 
 

 

 

Lofgren Properties 6 LLC and Oshkosh Investment LLC (Developer) purchased the Chase 
Bank building at 200 W. College Avenue in October 2022.  
 
Since acquisition, Developer has secured a lease with Chase Bank for a portion of the first 
floor and is marketing the remainder of the first floor to a variety of commercial tenants.  
Developer plans to create twenty-four (24) market rate living units offering efficiency, one 
and two bedrooms with approximate square footage ranging from 448 to 1,791 square feet.  
 
Based on the analysis of current value of the property, projected value of the property, and 
review of proposed expenses, TIF District #11 would invest the lesser of eighteen and 
43/100ths percent (18.43%) or $745,185 of the Tax Increment Value as of January 1, 2025, 
plus interest thereon to support the project.  
 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Development Agreement between Oshkosh Investment LLC, Lofgren Properties 6 LLC, 
and the City of Appleton BE APPROVED.   

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 1 

TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is dated as of the ___ day of 
____________________, 2023, by and among Oshkosh Investment LLC, a Wisconsin limited 
liability company and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company 
(“Developer”) and the City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “City”). 

RECITALS 

Developer and the City acknowledge the following: 

A. Developer owns the real property located 200 West College Avenue, (Parcel 31-
2-0263-00) Appleton, WI more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto (hereafter the 
“Property”). 

B. The Property is located within the City in Tax Increment District #11 (the “District”) 
which was created in 2017 pursuant to Section 66.1105, Wis. Stats. along with a plan for the 
redevelopment of the District (the “District Plan”) that provides for, among other things, the 
financial assistance set forth in this Agreement. 

C. Subject to obtaining the financial assistance set forth herein, Developer has 
proposed improvements to the Property to create an approximately one floor lower level 
entertainment area, one floor of commercial/retail space and two floors consisting of 
approximately twenty-four (24) market rate living units offering efficiency, one, and two bedrooms 
with approximate square footage ranging from 448 to 1,791 per unit (the “Project”).  All references 
to the Project include the Property. 

D. The City has determined that the Project will spur economic development, expand 
the City’s tax base and create new jobs; that such financial assistance is a Project Cost under the 
Tax Incremental Law; that the amount of financial assistance provided pursuant to this Agreement 
is the amount necessary to induce development of the Project; and, that the Project will not 
proceed without the financial assistance set forth in this Agreement. 

E. Subject to obtaining financial assistance as set forth herein, Developer intends to 
undertake a redevelopment of the property that will increase the value of the Property and provide 
other tangible benefits to the surrounding neighborhoods and to the City as a whole, consistent 
with the District Plan.  The City finds that this redevelopment of the Property and the fulfillment, 
generally, of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are in the vital and best interests of the 
City and its residents and serves a public purpose in accordance with state and local law. 

F. The City, pursuant to Common Council Action dated _________________, 2023 
has approved this Agreement and authorized the execution of this Agreement by the proper City 
officers on the City’s behalf. 

G. The Developer has approved this Agreement and authorized the appropriate 
officers to execute this Agreement on the Developer’s behalf. 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 2 

H. The base value of the Property for purposes of this Agreement, including 
calculating increment generated by the Project, is Two Million One Hundred Five Thousand Seven 
Hundred Dollars ($2,105,700). The Developer estimates the project will create up to an additional 
Four Million, Forty-four Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($4,044,300) in incremental value. 

I. All terms that are capitalized but not defined in this Agreement and that are defined 
under the Tax Increment Law shall have the definitions assigned to such terms by the Tax 
Increment Law. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals and the promises and undertakings 
set forth herein, the parties mutually agree and covenant as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE DEVELOPER 

1.1 Developer’s Project shall include improvements to, and development of, the 
Property as set forth in Exhibit B that will result in an increase in the Property’s assessed value.  
All aspects of the Project shall be in accordance with all applicable City zoning and building codes, 
ordinances and regulations. 

1.2 Project Costs shall include, without limitation, costs incurred after approval of this 
agreement for the construction of improvements (including infrastructure improvements), 
environmental remediation costs, demolition, interior remodeling and development of the project.  

1.3 Developer warrants and represents to the City that but for the assistance provided 
by the City under Article II, herein, Developer would not be able to proceed with the Project. 

1.4 Developer and City acknowledge that several of the specific undertakings of the 
parties may require approvals from directors, boards or the City Council as applicable.  The 
parties' agreements are conditioned upon the obtaining of all such approvals in the manner 
required by law.  The parties cannot assure that all such approvals will be obtained; however, 
they agree to use their best good faith efforts to obtain them on a timely basis. 

ARTICLE II 
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE CITY 

2.1 The City shall appropriate sufficient funds for the performance of the City’s 
obligations under this Agreement. 

2.2 City shall cooperate with Developer throughout the Project and shall promptly 
review and/or process all submissions and applications in accordance with applicable City 
ordinances. 

2.3 Subject to all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement and 
applicable provisions of law, and as an inducement by the City to Developer to carry out the 
Project, upon completion of the Project (which shall be defined as issuance of occupancy permits 
for all floors of the Project (hereafter “completion”)) the City will provide payments to Developer 
solely from the future Tax Increments (derived from both real and personal property) to assist with 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 3 

Developer’s Project Costs.  The City’s total payment of Tax Increment Revenue to the Developer 
shall not exceed the lesser of i) $745,185 or ii) 18.43% of the Tax Increment Value as of January 
1, 2025, plus interest thereon (the “Contribution”). 

The Contribution will be paid to Developer as follows: 

2.3.1 As the sole source for payment of the Contribution, the City agrees to pay 
the Developer an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the Tax Increment Revenue 
attributable to, and actually received from, the Property during the calendar year. 

2.3.2 Payments under this Agreement shall be due in annual installments on 
August 15 of the calendar year following the first tax year after completion of the Project 
and continuing on each August 15 thereafter for a period of time described in Sec. 4.2 

2.3.3 Interest on the Contribution shall begin to accrue upon completion of the 
Project.  The interest rate on the Contribution shall be lesser of 1) the interest rate paid by 
the Developer to the primary lender for the Project, as evidenced by the note indicating 
the loan amount; or, 2) six percent (6%). 

2.3.4 The Contribution shall be a special and limited obligation of the City and 
not a general obligation.  Payments shall first apply to accrued interest and then to the 
principal balance of the Contribution.  Unpaid interest in any year shall be added to the 
principal balance of the Contribution and accrue interest.  The City may prepay the 
Contribution, in its sole discretion, at any time, with no prepayment penalty. 

2.4 This Agreement fully evidences the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution.  No 
separate instrument will be prepared to evidence the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution.  
The Contribution shall not be included in the computation of the City’s statutory debt limitation 
because the Contribution is limited and conditional and no taxes will be levied or pledged for its 
payment.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to change the nature of the City’s obligation 
from a limited and conditional obligation to a general obligation. 

2.5 The City covenants to Developer that until the Contribution plus interest thereon 
has been paid in full, the City shall not close the District prior to its statutory expiration date. 

2.6 The City shall, upon Developer’s request, provide to Developer an accounting of 
the status of the District including, but not limited to, the outstanding principal balance of the 
Contribution and annual Tax Increments received from the District. 

2.7 Developer hereby acknowledges that, as a result of the special and limited nature 
of the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution, Developer’s recovery of the full amount of the 
Contribution depends on factors including, but not limited to, future mill rates, changes in the 
assessed value of the Property, the failure of the Property to generate the Tax Increments at the 
rate expected by Developer, reduction in Tax Increments caused by revenue-sharing, changes in 
the Tax Increment Law, and other factors beyond the City’s and/or Developer’s control. 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 4 

ARTICLE III 
PAYMENT OF TAXES 

3.1 As long as the District is in existence, the Property and all buildings and 
improvements thereon shall be owned and taxable for real estate tax and special assessment 
purposes.  The City may waive any or all of the restrictions upon execution of a payment in lieu 
of taxes (PILOT) agreement on a form acceptable to the City. 

3.2 Throughout the duration of this agreement, all ad valorem property taxes properly 
assessed against the Property will be paid timely and in full. 

3.3 In the event that any property owned by Developer within the District becomes 
exempt from ad valorem property taxes during the life of the District, then for the remaining life of 
the District, the Developer will make (or cause to be made) annual payments in lieu of taxes in 
amounts equal to what the ad valorem property taxes would have been for such other property 
had it not been exempt.  If the Developer conveys the Property within the District to any party 
(related or unrelated), the terms of such sale shall impose as a covenant upon all successor 
owners of the property the foregoing obligation for payments in lieu of taxes during the life of the 
District.  The City shall be a beneficiary of such covenant and entitled to enforce same against 
the successor owners. 

ARTICLE IV 
CONDITIONS TO PAYMENT; TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

4.1 The City shall have no obligation to pay any portion of the Contribution to 
Developer unless and until all of the following conditions shall have been met: 

4.1.1 The Project’s completion on or before December 31, 2024 subject to 
reasonable extensions, not to exceed six (6) months each, for Force Majeure which shall 
include, but not be limited to, any delays caused by pandemic or other acts beyond the 
reasonable control of the Developer. Such extensions shall be by mutual written 
agreement and, in considering any requested extension, the City and Developer agree 
that each will act in good faith, cooperate in expeditious and timely approvals, and said 
extensions shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed by City. 

4.1.2 The Property’s assessed value is no less than Six Million Dollars 
($6,000,000) on or after January 1, 2025.  

4.2 This Agreement, and the City’s obligation to make, or continue, any payments of 
the Contribution, shall terminate when any of the following shall have occurred: 

4.2.1 The conditions in Section 4.1 are not met.  

4.2.2 The Contribution is paid in full or August 15, 2039, whichever occurs first. 

ARTICLE V 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

5.1 No member, officer or employee of the City, during his/her tenure or for one year 
thereafter, will have or shall have had any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or any 
proceeds thereof. 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 5 

ARTICLE VI 
WRITTEN NOTICES 

6.1 Any written notice required under this Agreement shall be sent to the following 
individuals: 

FOR THE CITY: 
 
City of Appleton 
Community and Economic Development Department 
100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911-4799 
Attention:  Director 
 
With a copy to: 
 
City of Appleton 
City Attorney’s Office 
100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911-4799 
Attn:  City Attorney 
 
FOR DEVELOPER: 
 
Oshkosh Investment LLC and 
Lofgren Properties 6 LLC 
202 West Main Street 
Sun Prairie, WI    53590 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
ASSIGNMENT 

7.1 No party to this Agreement may assign any of its interest or obligations hereunder 
without first obtaining the written consent of the other party. 

ARTICLE VIII 
NO PARTNERSHIP OR VENTURE 

8.1 Developer and its contractors or subcontractors shall be solely responsible for the 
completion of the Project.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or effect any 
partnership, venture or relationship between the City and Developer or any contractor or 
subcontractor employed by Developer in the construction of the Project. 

ARTICLE IX 
MISCELLANEOUS 

9.1 Under no circumstances shall any officer, official, director, member, manager, 
commissioner, agent, or employee of City or Developer have any personal liability arising out of 
this Agreement, and no party shall seek or claim any such personal liability. 

9.2 The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern this Agreement. 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 6 

9.3 This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts with the same effect 
as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. 

9.4 No modification, alteration, or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding upon 
any party until such modification, alteration, or amendment is reduced to writing and executed by 
all parties to this Agreement. 

9.5 Any captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no 
way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

9.6 If any provisions of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be inoperative or 
unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction because it conflicts with any 
other provision or provisions of this Agreement or any constitution or statute or rule of public 
policy, or for any other reason, then such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the 
provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstance, or of 
rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable 
to any extent whatever.  To the maximum extent possible, this Agreement shall be construed in 
a manner consistent with the powers of the City, including but not limited to, the City's powers 
under the Blight Elimination and Slum Clearance Law and the Tax Increment Law, to achieve its 
intended purpose.  Reference is made to Section 66.1333(17) of the Wisconsin Statutes and 
Chapter 105, Laws of 1975 § 4, which provide that the Blight Elimination and Slum Clearance 
Law and the Tax Increment Law should be construed liberally to effectuate their purposes. 

[Signatures on following pages] 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
first above written. 

CITY OF APPLETON: 
 
 
 
By:   
 Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:   
 Kami L. Lynch, City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    : ss. 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ) 
 

Personally came before me this ____ day of _________________, 2023, Jacob A. 
Woodford, Mayor and Kami L. Lynch, City Clerk, of the City of Appleton respectively, to me known 
to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the 
capacity and for the purposes therein intended. 

 
   
Printed Name:    
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission is/expires:    

 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY FOR  
OBLIGATIONS INCURRED PURSUANT TO  
THIS AGREEMENT: 
 
 
   
Jeri A. Ohman, Finance Director 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
   
Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 
Dated: January 4, 2023 
By:  Christopher R. Behrens  
City Law A22‐1046 



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 8 

 
DEVELOPER: 
 
Oshkosh Investment LLC 
 
 
 
By:   
Printed Name: __________________________ 
Title: _________________________________ 
 
 
 
By:   
Printed Name: __________________________ 
Title: _________________________________ 
 
 
 

STATE OF ______________ ) 
    : ss. 
_______________ COUNTY ) 
 

Personally came, before me this ____ day of ___________________, 2023, 
_________________________ and _______________________ each a member of the LLC, to 
me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same 
in the capacity and for the purposes therein intended. 

 

   
Printed Name:    
Notary Public, State of ____________________ 
My commission is/expires:    

  



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 9 

DEVELOPER: 
 
Lofgren Properties 6 LLC 
 
 
 
By:   
Printed Name: __________________________ 
Title: _________________________________ 
 
 
 
By:   
Printed Name: __________________________ 
Title: _________________________________ 
 
 
 

STATE OF ______________ ) 
    : ss. 
_______________ COUNTY ) 
 

Personally came, before me this ____ day of ___________________, 2021, 
_________________________ and _______________________ each a member of the LLC, to 
me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same 
in the capacity and for the purposes therein intended. 

 

   
Printed Name:    
Notary Public, State of ____________________ 
My commission is/expires:    
 

 
 

  



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 10 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 

A. Legal Description of Property 
 
 
B. Proposed Improvements 

 

  



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 11 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 
 
200 West College Avenue 
Parcel ID# 31-2-0263-00 
 
 
 

 
  



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 12 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 
  



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 13 

 
  



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 14 

  



_____________________________________________ 
  Oshkosh Investment LLC and Lofgren Properties 6 LLC  

City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 15 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915-3128 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

 

To: Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 
 

From: Utilities Director Chris Shaw 
 

CC: Chris Stempa, Utilities Deputy Director 

Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Fund Accounting Manager 
 

Date: December 29, 2022 
 

Re: Action: Award sole source purchase of Goulds axial flow pump from Crane 

Engineering in the amount of $133,876 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) utilizes two large axial flow pumps in 

the solids operations train.  These axial flow pumps have reliably operated since the late 

1970’s to blend post digested sludge to a homogenous state. That state of homogeneity is 

necessary for dewatering equipment and chemical delivery systems to optimize and reach 

engineered design conditions.   

 

In November, it was discovered that the impeller on one of the axial flow pumps failed. This 

failed state makes the pump unusable and AWWTP staff are reduced to operating the 

remaining pump which reduces overall capacity by 50%.  Staff are not able to perform an 

expedited repair because of the condition of the impeller.  A custom fabricated replacement 

impeller was sought.  However, the lead time could be up to 24 weeks and initial indication 

was that they would not warranty the replacement part because of the age and absence of 

existing equipment design drawings that would otherwise be relied upon to replicate 

fabricated parts.  

 

A direct replacement axial flow pump was found available through Crane Engineering 

(Crane).  Crane is the authorized distributor of this pump in Wisconsin. They provided a quote 

for a 5 month lead time, stainless steel pump ($133,876).   

 

The Utilities Department consulted Mayor Woodford regarding emergency purchase 

authorization because of the critical nature of this pump to wastewater treatment operations, 

the unique nature of the equipment, and the long lead time of even an expedited purchase.  

Mayor Woodford granted emergency purchased authorization of a cancellation expense of 15 

percent of the purchase cost should the committee choose not to authorize the purchase. In 



Finance Committee Informational Memo 

Sole Source Goulds Axial Flow Pump from Crane Engineering  

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

short, this approval under emergency authorization, will allow for a shorter lead time on the 

pump. As such, a purchase order submitted to Crane on Thursday, December 29, 2022.  

Notably, this pump failure was prior to the polymer incident on December 26, 2022.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Utilities Department is seeking authorization to procure the stainless-steel pump sole 

source from Crane Engineering in the amount of $133,876.  It should be noted that there is a 

cancellation fee associated with this purchase. If this purchase was denied by the Utilities 

Committee or Common Council, The Utilities Department would be subject to $20,081 fee or 

15% of the original purchase price.     

 

If you have any questions regarding the project or the associated change order, please contact 

Chris Shaw at 832-2362. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                     “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915-3128 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

To: Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 

From: Chris Stempa, Utilities Deputy Director  

CC: Utilities Director Chris Shaw  

Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Fund Accounting Manager 

Date: January 6, 2023 

Re: Action: Award axial flow sludge blending pump impeller repair contract to 

August Winter and Sons in the amount of $23,000 with a 15% contingency of 

$3,450 for a total to not exceed $26,450 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) utilizes two large axial flow pumps in 

the solids operations train. These axial flow pumps have reliably operated since the late 1970’s 

to blend post digested sludge to a homogenous state. In November 2022, the impeller on one 

of the axial flow pumps failed making it unusable. Four companies were asked to submit 

quotes for the repair of the failed impeller.  Lead time is a critical consideration because of the 

50% loss of overall blending capacity.  Noteworthy is that the lead time of a new replacement 

pump (separate memorandum, dated December 29, 2022) is 5-months.  Only two of the four 

firms that were contacted provided quotes.  Reasons cited included the age of the equipment, 

questions or concerns pertaining to the repair in the absence of explicit design drawings, 

and/or the short lead time desired by the city.   
 

Table 1: Quote Summary 

Company Quote Estimated Lead Time 

August Winter and Sons $23,000 2-3 weeks 

Sabel Mechanical  $24,555 10-weeks 

 $31,915 6-weeks (expedited) 

Staab Construction Did not Quote  

EMNOR Did not Quote  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval of the axial flow pump impeller repair contract to August Winter and Sons, Inc. in 

the amount of $23,000 with a 15% contingency of $3,450 for a total not to exceed $26,450. 

 

If you have any questions regarding the project or the associated change order, please contact 

Chris Stempa at 832-2353. 



1-23 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 23 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 
OF APPLETON AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP WHICH IS A PART THEREOF, BY 
MAKING THE FOLLOWING CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT AS NOW PROVIDED. 

(City Plan Commission 1-18-2023) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1: That Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton and the Official Zoning Map, which is a part thereof, is amended by making the following 

changes: 

 
To rezone lands located at 1208 North Oneida Street, including the adjacent one-half 
(1/2) right-of-way of N. Oneida Street, from C-2 General Commercial District to R-2 
Two-Family District. (Rezoning #5-22 – 1208 N. Oneida St.) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
DAVID KIMBALLS ADDN 6W D N60FT OF LOT 5 BLK 19 LESS DOC 
#1873750 FOR R/W, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN AND INCLUDING TO THE MIDPOINT OF THE ADJACENT 
RIGHT-OF-WAY.  TAX ID NUMBER 31-6-0329-00.   
                                                                   
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 
 
1208 North Oneida Street, including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of N. 
Oneida Street 
 
 
Section 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication the Director of Community and Economic 

Development is authorized and directed to make the necessary changes to the Official Zoning Map 

in accordance with this Ordinance. 

 
 
 
 



2-23 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-205(b)(2) OF CHAPTER 23 OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO GENERAL 
PROVISIONS; OFFICIAL MAPS AND REVISIONS; OFFICIAL MAPS BASED ON 
OTHER STUDIES. 

(City Plan Commission – 1-18-2023) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1:  That Section 23-205(b)(2) of Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton, relating to general provisions; official maps and revisions; official maps based on other 

studies, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 23-205. General provisions. 
 

 (b) Official maps and revisions. The boundaries of all floodplain districts are 
designated as A, AE, AH, AO or A1-30 on the maps based on the Flood Insurance Study 
(FIS) listed below.  Any change to the base flood elevations (BFE) or any changes to the 
boundaries of the floodplain or floodway in the FIS or on the Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) must be reviewed and approved by the DNR and FEMA through the Letter of Map 
Change process (see Division 8 Amendments) before it is effective.  No changes to RFE's on 
non-FEMA maps shall be effective until approved by the DNR.  These maps and revisions 
are on file in the office of the Department of Public Works, City of Appleton.  If more than 
one map or revision is referenced, the most restrictive information shall apply.   

 
  (2) Official maps based on other studies.  Any maps referenced in this section 

must be approved by the DNR and be more restrictive than those based on 
the FIS at the site of the proposed development. 

 
   a. LOMR – Case #11-05-7670P, Floodway and Floodplain 

revisions between Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Cross Section AW to 
BA, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panels 
55087C0318D and 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 2010. This reflects 
changes on the Fox River from just downstream of the Private Middle 
Dam to approximately 250 feet upstream of the Appleton Upper 
Dam. 

 
   b. LOMR – Case #13-05-7920P, Floodplain revisions between 

Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Cross Section AN to AM, Outagamie 
County Flood Insurance Rate panels 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 
2010. This reflects changes along the south side of the Fox River 
from the College Avenue Bridge to approximately 850 feet 



downstream. 
 
   c. LOMR – Case #17-05-1963P. Floodplain revisions on 

Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) AAL Tributary 
Cross Section C, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) panel 55087C0336D, effective September 29, 2017. This 
reflects changes along the AAL Tributary from just downstream of 
Lightning Drive to approximately 200 feet upstream of East 
Glenhurst Lane. 

 
   d. LOMR – Case #17-05-3854P. Floodplain revisions to 

Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Fox River Cross 
Section AS through AW, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate 
Map (FIRM) panel 55087C0319D, effective February 16, 2018. This 
reflects changes along the Fox River from just upstream of railroad to 
just downstream of South Oneida Street. 

 
   e. LOMR – Case #20-05-2300P. Floodplain revisions to 

Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Apple Creek North 
Cross Section H through J, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate 
Map (FIRM) panel 55087C0328D, effective July 22, 2010. This 
reflects changes along Apple Creek North from approximately 1,440 
feet downstream of Harrier Lance to approximately 160 feet 
downstream of Ballard Road. 

 
   f. LOMR – Case #21-05-2374P. Floodplain revisions to 

Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Apple Creek 
Northeast Cross Section H through I, Outagamie County Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel 55087C0328D, effective January 
27, 2023. This reflects changes along Apple Creek Northeast from 
approximately 700 feet downstream of Rubyred Drive to 
approximately 350 feet downstream of French Road. 

 
  g. CLOMR – Case #21-05-3029R. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie 

County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) AAL Tributary from just 
upstream of East Glenhurst Lane to approximately 500 feet upstream 
of Everbreeze Circle, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) panel 55087C0336D, effective November 1, 2021. 

 
   h. Kensington Pond Dam Failure analysis approved by the 

Department of Natural Resources on January 7, 2008, including: 
 
    1. Map dated July 2007 and titled “Figure 2, City of Appleton, 

Kensington Pond Dam Break Analysis, Hydraulic Shadow” 
(Hydraulic Shadow boundary from Cross Section 0.001 to 
4.84). 



 
    2. Floodway data table dated 8/28/2007 and titled “Table F-10, 

Maximum Water Surface Elevations, Kensington Pond Dam 
Break Analysis, City of Appleton”. 

 
    3. Flood profiles dated 7/10/2007 and titled “Figure 3, 

Maximum Water Surface Profiles” (Hydraulic Shadow profile 
from Garners Creek Sta 0 to Sta 25000). Revisions made as a 
result of DNR review and received from Pete Neuberger via 
email 2/23/2021. 

 
   i. Outagamie County Flood Storage District Map Panel 1 of 2 

approved by Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and dated 
January 20, 2016. Prepared by DNR, approved by DNR. 

 
Section 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication. 

 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 12-21-22
	0002_1_Human Trafficking Awareness Proclamation
	0002_2_Martin Luther King Jr Day Proclamation
	0004_1_TA 4-22 Notice of Public Hearing
	0005_1_RZ 5_22 Notice of Public Hearing
	RE: Proposed Zone Change

	0006_1_2023 Sole Source Purchase Request
	0007_1_M-23 Contract Award Memo
	Appleton city government exists to provide quality services responsive to the needs of the community
	Department of Public Works – Engineering Division

	MEMO

	0008_1_2023 Sole Source Purchase Request
	0009_1_2023 Resolution Changing District 12 Polling Place
	0010_1_Appleton Souvenir Cigar
	0011_1_Appleton Souvenir Cigar SL
	0012_1_Badger Mobil SL
	0013_1_StaffReport_1208NOneidaSt_Rezoning_For 12-14-22
	0014_1_StaffReport_AmendFloodplainOrd_NorthEdgewoodEst_LOMR_For12-14-22
	0015_1_Award of Contract Unit O-23
	0016_1_Merge Ph II DA 1st Amendment Memo to CEDC 1-11-23
	0016_2_Request from Merge LLC to Amend Dev Agrm
	0016_3_Merge Ph II Recorded Dev Agrm
	0017_1_Oshkosh Investment-Lofgren Properties 6 LLC DA Memo to CEDC 1-11-23
	0017_2_1046 - Oshkosh-Lofgren - Dev Agrm - 01-04-2023
	0018_1_Utilities Committee Blended Sludge Pump 12-29-22
	0019_1_230106_ Blended Sludge Pump Repair Contract Award Memo
	0020_1_Ordinances to Council 1-18-23
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION:




